Selby District Council



Minutes

Executive

Venue: Committee Room - Civic Centre, Doncaster Road,

Selby, YO8 9FT

Date: Thursday, 10 January 2019

Time: 4.00 pm

Present: Councillors M Crane (Chair), J Mackman (Vice-

Chair), C Lunn, C Metcalfe and C Pearson

Also Present: Councillors M Jordan

Officers Present: Janet Waggott (Chief Executive), Dave Caulfield

(Director of Economic Regeneration and Place), Julie Slatter (Director of Corporate Services & Commissioning), Karen Iveson (Chief Finance Officer (s151)), Clare Dickinson (Principal Planning Policy Officer) (for minute item 69), Julian Rudd

(Head of Economic Development and

Regeneration) (for minute item 70), Iain Brown (Economy and Infrastructure Manager) (for minute item 70), Kevin Ross (Accountant) (for minute items 71 and 72), Mike James (Communications and

Marketing Manager) and Palbinder Mann

(Democratic Services Manager)

Public: 0

Press: 1

NOTE: Only minute numbers 69 to 71 are subject to call-in arrangements. The deadline for call-in is 5pm on Wednesday 23 January 2019. Decisions not called in may be implemented from Thursday 24 January 2019.

66 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

There were no apologies for absence.

67 MINUTES

The Executive considered the minutes of the meeting held on 6 December 2018.

68 DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

69 HS2 WORKING DRAFT ENVIRONMENTAL STATEMENT

The Lead Executive Member for Place Shaping presented the report which provided the Executive with an update on High Speed 2 (HS2) and specifically the Working Draft Environmental Statement (WDES) which was recently out for public consultation.

The Lead Executive Member for Place Shaping explained that the Council had submitted their comments to HS2 Ltd on 20th December 2018 and that the Council's position on HS2 agreed by the Executive on 7 June 2018 was to seek to minimise any adverse local impacts as well as maximise the benefits for Selby District's residents and businesses.

Concern was raised regarding the impact of the construction compounds outlined on the map in the report and the effect of these on local residents along with the proposed viaduct for the route through Church Fenton. It was noted that concerns regarding these had been expressed in the consultation response.

In response to queries concerning the route, it was noted this was currently being challenged and concerns had been passed onto HS2.

RESOLVED:

- i) To notes the contents of this report;
- ii) To note the consultation response attached at Appendix A which was submitted to HS2 Ltd on 20th December 2018.

REASON FOR DECISION:

To note the comments which were submitted to HS2 Ltd on 20th

Executive Thursday, 10 January 2019

December 2018.

70 SELBY DISTRICT ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK 2017-2022 - YEAR ONE REVIEW & DELIVERY PLAN 2019 AND 2020

The Lead Executive Member for Communities and Economic Development presented the report which provided the further information requested by the Executive in relation to the proposed Economic Development Framework (EDF) Delivery Plan 2019 and 2020 and the associated progress review and budgetary transfers.

The Lead Executive Member for Communities and Economic Development explained that since the Executive meeting in November, officers had engaged with Members and external partners on the delivery plan and the comments were outlined in section 2.3 of the report. The Executive were informed that there had also been a recent announcement of the Future High Street Fund which the Council would be able to bid for.

The Lead Executive Member for Communities and Economic Development stated that the delivery plan was a long term commitment designed to create jobs for the area and lead additional business rates income.

Members praised the work of officers delivering the Economic Development Framework to date while acknowledging a number of the projects were long term and therefore further work was required.

RESOLVED:

- 1) To agree the EDF Delivery Plan for 2019 and 2020 (Appendix A) and the priority order set out at paragraph 2.6 of this report;
- 2) To agree the movements between budget headings in the existing Programme for Growth (P4G) budget to resource delivery of the EDF Delivery Plan (Appendix B);
- 3) To agree the performance indicators to monitor progress (Appendix C);
- 4) To agree that details of the Year One Review and Delivery Plan be shared with partners.

REASON FOR DECISION:

To continue to deliver the EDF and the Corporate Plan following

Executive Thursday, 10 January 2019

significant progress through Programme for Growth investment in this work area.

71 HOUSING RENTS 2019/20

The Lead Executive Member for Finance and Resources presented the report which outlined proposals for Housing Revenue Account rent levels which have been set in accordance with central Government's current policy on rent setting.

The Lead Executive Member for Finance and Resources explained that 2019/20 would be the last year of the Government's four year policy to decrease rents 1% year on year and it would result in an average decrease of £0.78. The Executive was informed that from 2020/21 the Council would allowed to increase their rent up to the level of the consumer price index (CPI) plus 1%.

RESOLVED:

To approve the proposed 1.0% rent decrease for 2019/20.

REASON FOR DECISION:

To allow rent levels to be set in advance of the coming financial year within the constraints of Government rent setting policy.

72 DRAFT REVENUE BUDGET AND CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2019/20 AND MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN

The Lead Executive Member for Finance and Resources presented the draft revenue budget, capital programme and latest forecast for the Programme for Growth for 2019/20 to 2021/22.

The Lead Executive Member for Finance and Resources explained that the Government's multi-year finance settlement had been better than expected for the Council however there were pressures on council finances.

The Leader of the Council explained that as part of the District Council's Network, they had lobbied the Government to not introduce a negative Revenue Support Grant along with retaining the threshold on the New Homes Bonus and they had been successful on both of these issues.

Discussion took place on proposed level of council tax increase which was currently proposed at £5 for an average band D property. The Executive felt that due to the better than expected settlement from the Government, the proposed increase should be reduced to £3 for an average band D property. It was noted that this would still be below the rate of inflation and that the Council had

Executive Thursday, 10 January 2019

only increased council tax at a level above the rate of inflation on one occasion.

The Chief Finance Officer explained that the new proposal would result in an loss of income of just under £63k for the Council which would have to be found through savings or income generation in other areas. The Executive was informed that although the settlement had been better than expected, there were still areas of uncertainty such as the New Homes Bonus which were not secured for future years. Additionally, the Chief Finance Officer explained that the Government was currently undertaking a consultation on local government needs and resources and would assume that the Council would raise council tax at the maximum level.

The Executive discussed the implications and felt that the Council's savings plan was robust enough to make up the shortfall therefore agreed to include a £3 council tax rise for an average band D property in the draft budget proposals.

RESOLVED:

- To amend the proposed increase in council tax to £3 for an average band D property;
- ii) To approve the draft budgets, bids and savings for public consultation and submit then to the Policy Review Committee for comment.

REASON FOR DECISION:

To enable the views of the public and Policy Review Committee members to gathered through consultation.

73 ANNUAL REVIEW OF THE CONSTITUTION

The Leader of the Council presented the report which highlighted the proposed changes to the Constitution and asked the Executive to refer them for consideration at the Audit and Governance Committee before they were presented to Council for approval.

It was noted that then paragraph (b) under section 23 'Grant applications and claims' under the financial procedure rules should read as follows:

Applications and claims with a value exceeding £50,000 shall be approved by the relevant Director and the Chief Finance Officer except where such initiatives will require additional funding (either capital or revenue) beyond that contained within the approved estimates.

RESOLVED:

To endorses the proposed changes and ask Audit and Governance to consider and report on the changes before they are considered by full Council.

REASON FOR DECISION:

To ensure the constitution is up to date and fit for purpose.

The meeting closed at 5.02 pm.